
Multiple files are bound together in this PDF Package.

Adobe recommends using Adobe Reader or Adobe Acrobat version 8 or later to work with 
documents contained within a PDF Package. By updating to the latest version, you’ll enjoy 
the following benefits:  

•  Efficient, integrated PDF viewing 

•  Easy printing 

•  Quick searches 

Don’t have the latest version of Adobe Reader?  

Click here to download the latest version of Adobe Reader

If you already have Adobe Reader 8, 
click a file in this PDF Package to view it.

http://www.adobe.com/products/acrobat/readstep2.html




SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 


AGENDA 
December 1, 2011, Regular Meeting 


District Offices, 17081 Hwy. 116, Ste. B 
Guerneville, California 


6:30 p.m. 
 
 
NOTICE TO PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES: It is the policy of the Sweetwater Springs Water 
District to offer its public programs, services and meetings in a manner that is readily accessible 
to everyone, including those with disabilities.  Upon request made at least 48 hours in advance of 
the need for assistance, this Agenda will be made available in appropriate alternative formats to 
persons with disabilities.  This notice is in compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act (28 
CFR, 35.102-35.104 ADA Title II). 
 
Any person who has any questions concerning any agenda item may call the General Manager 
or Assistant Clerk of the Board to make inquiry concerning the nature of the item described on 
the agenda; copies of staff reports or other written documentation for each item of business are 
on file in the District Office and available for public inspection.  All items listed are for Board 
discussion and action except for public comment items.  In accordance with Section 5020.40 et 
seq. of the District Policies & Procedures, each speaker should limit their comments on any 
Agenda item to five (5) minutes or less.  A maximum of twenty (20) minutes of public comment is 
allowed for each subject matter on the Agenda, unless the Board President allows additional 
time. 
  
 
I. CALL TO ORDER (Est. time: 2 min.) 
 


A. Board members Present 
 
B. Board members Absent 


 
 C. Others in Attendance 
 
 
II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATIONS OF CONFLICT 


(Est. time: 2 min.) 
 
 


III. CONSENT CALENDAR (Est. time: 5 min.) 
 (Note:  Items appearing on the Consent Calendar are deemed to be routine and 


non-controversial.  A Board member may request that any item be removed from 
the Consent Calendar and added as an “Administrative” agenda item for the 
purposes of discussing the item(s)). 


 
A. Approval of the Minutes of the November 3, 2011 Board Meeting 
 
B. Approval of Operations Warrants/Online payments/EFT payments 
 
C. Receipt of Item(s) of Correspondence.  Please note: Correspondence received 


regarding an item on the Administrative Agenda is not itemized here, but will be 
attached as back-up to that item in the Board packet and addressed with that 
item during the Board meeting 







 2


 
D. Approval of Resolution 11-29, Authorizing Adoption of Plan Restatement (VALIC 


457 Plan) 
 
 


IV. PUBLIC COMMENT: The District invites public participation regarding the affairs of 
the District.  This time is made available for members of the public to address the Board 
regarding matters which do not appear on the Agenda, but are related to business of the 
District.  Pursuant to the Brown Act, however, the Board of Directors may not conduct 
discussions or take action on items presented under public comment.  Board members may 
ask questions of a speaker for purposes of clarification. 


 
 
V. ADMINISTRATIVE 


 
A. Discussion/Action re Rio Vista Terrace saddle failures (Est. time 15 min.) 
 
B. Discussion/Action re Adding Direct Installation Option to Toilet Rebate Program 


(Est. time 10 min.) 
 
C. Discussion/Action re District radios (Est. time 15 min.) 
 
D. Discussion/Action re Review of the 2012-18 Capital Improvement Program (Est. 


time 20 min.) 
 
E. Discussion/Action re 2012 Organizational Meeting / Board Elections (Est. time 15 


min.) 
 
 


VI. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT  
 
 
VII. BOARD MEMBERS’ ANNOUNCEMENTS/COMMENTS (Est. time 


5 min.) 
 
 
VIII. CLOSED SESSION (Est. time: 20 min.) 
 


A. Conference with Legal Counsel – Significant exposure to litigation pursuant to 
subdivision (b) of Section 54956.9.  Number of cases: 2 


 
 
IX.  ITEMS FOR NEXT AGENDA (Est. time: 5 min.) 
 
 


ADJOURN 





		II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATIONS OF CONFLICT (Est. time: 2 min.)

		V. ADMINISTRATIVE

		IX.  ITEMS FOR NEXT AGENDA (Est. time: 5 min.)



		ADJOURN






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 


 


MINUTES* 
(*In order discussed) 


 
 


Board of Directors Meeting  
Regular Meeting  
November 3, 2011 
6:30 p.m. 
 
 
Board Members Present: Victoria Wikle 
 Jim Quigley 
 Gaylord Schaap 
 Sukey Robb-Wilder 
 Richard Holmer 
   
Board Members Absent: None 
 
Staff in Attendance: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 Julie A. Kenny, Secretary to the Board 
   
Others in Attendance:     Nancy Thorington, District Counsel 
      John Wanger, Coastland Civil Engineering 
      Brian Grant 
      Stephanie Felch 
       


 
 


I. CALL TO ORDER 
 


The properly agendized meeting was called to Order by President Jim Quigley at 6:34 p.m. 
 
 
II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATION OF CONFLICT (6:31 


p.m.) 
 
The GM requested and it was agreed to pull Closed Session Item VIII-A (Significant exposure to 
litigation), and to discuss Closed Session Item VIII-C (Berry et al. litigation) before VIII-B 
(Conference with Real Property Negotiators).  
 
 


III. CONSENT CALENDAR (6:34 p.m.) 
 
Director Wikle moved to approve the Consent Calendar as submitted.  Director Holmer seconded.  
Motion carried 5-0.  The following items were approved: 
 


A. Approval of the Minutes of the November 3, 2011 Board Meeting 
 
B. Approval of Operations Warrants/Online payments/EFT payment 
 


 1







C. Receipt of Item(s) of Correspondence: 
 
D. Approve Resolution 11-26, Approving the Second Amendment to Employment 


Agreement with Stephen F. Mack and Authorizing the Board President to Sign  
 
 


IV. PUBLIC COMMENT (6:35 p.m.) 
 
(None.) 
 
 


V. ADMINISTRATIVE (6:37 p.m.) 
 
A. (6:37 p.m.) Presentation by Monte Rio Recreation and Park District (MRRPD) re 


Russian River Watershed Adventure Park and Wonderland Trail.  MRRPD Board 
Member Steve Baxman introduced this item.  Brian Grant and Stephanie Felch made a 
presentation to the Board on behalf of MRRPD.  Board discussion and questions ensued.  
No action was taken   


B. (7:35 p.m.) Discussion/Action re Resolution 11-27, Approving a First Amendment 
to the Agreement for Engineering Services for FY 2012 Capital Improvement 
Program (CIP) with Coastland Engineering Inc. (Coastland) and Authorizing the 
General Manager to Execute the Amendment  The GM provided an overview of this 
item.  Board questions ensued.  Public comment was made by John Wanger of 
Coastland Civil Engineering.  District Counsel Nancy Thorington provided comments.  
Public comment was made by Brian Grant.  Further Board discussion ensued.  Director 
Wikle moved to approve Resolution 11-27, Amendment #1 to the Contract with 
Coastland Engineering for Design and Construction Management Services for the 2012 
Capital Improvement Project.  Director Robb-Wilder seconded.  Motion carried 5-0. 


C. (7:52 p.m.) Discussion/Action re Resolution 11-28, Contract with Coastland 
Engineering for the Design Services and Construction Management and Inspection 
Services for the 2013 Capital Improvement Project (CIP 2013).  The GM provided an 
overview of this item.  Discussion ensued.  Public comment was made by John Wanger 
of Coastland Engineering.  Further Board discussion ensued.  Director Robb-Wilder 
moved to approve Resolution 11-28, Approving an Agreement for Engineering Services 
for FY 2013 Capital Improvement Program (CIP) with Coastland Engineering Inc. 
(Coastland) and Authorizing the General Manager to Sign.  Director Schaap seconded.  
Motion carried 4-0, with Director Wikle abstaining from the vote.  


D. (8:07 p.m.) Discussion/Action re Rio Vista Terrace saddle failures.  The GM provided 
an overview of this item.  Board discussion ensued.  No action was taken.  


E. (8:12 p.m.) Discussion/Action re Surplus Lands.  The GM provided an overview of 
this item.  Board discussion ensued.  No action was taken. 


F. (8:20 p.m.) Discussion/Action re 2011-12 1st Quarter Actual vs. Budgeted Operating 
and Capital Revenue and Expenditures.  The GM provided an overview of this item.  
Board discussion ensued.  No action was taken. 


G. (8:26 p.m.) Discussion/Action re Adding Direct Installation Option to Toilet Rebate 
Program. The GM provided an overview of this item.  Board discussion ensued.  No 
action was taken. 


 
 


VI. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT (7:46 p.m.) 
 
The GM reported on the following items: 


 2







1. Laboratory testing 
2. Water Production and Sales 
3. Leaks 
4. Rainfall graph 
5. 2012 CIP 
6. Toilet Rebate Program 
7. In-House Construction Projects 
8. Urban Water Management Plan (UWMP) 
9. Sonoma County Water Agency Water Rights Permit Revision Protest 
10. Rio Vista Terrace 
11. Gantt Chart 
 
 


VII. BOARD MEMBERS’ ANNOUNCEMENTS/COMMENTS  
(8:47 p.m.) 


 
Director Wikle announced an E-waste event this Saturday (11/5/2011). 
 
 


VIII. CLOSED SESSION (8:48 p.m.) 
 
At 8:48 p.m. President Quigley announced the items for discussion in Closed Session.  At 8:49 
p.m. the Board went into Closed Session.  At 9:40 p.m. the meeting reconvened and the following 
actions on Closed Session items were announced: 
 


A. (This item was removed from discussion earlier in the meeting.) 
   


C. Conference with Legal Counsel – Existing Litigation, pursuant to subd. (a) 
of Section 54956.9. 


 Name of case: John Bruce Berry, et al. v. F. Korbel & Bros. et al. 
    SCV 240790  
  No action was taken. 
 


B. Conference with Real Property Negotiators pursuant to Gov. Code Section 
94956.7 


 Property at 14335 Woods Ave., Guerneville 
 Agency negotiator: Steve Mack 
 Negotiating parties: SSWD and to be determined  


  Title: General Manager 
  Direction was given to staff. 
 
 


IX. ITEMS FOR THE NEXT AGENDA (9:40 p.m.) 
 
1. Election 
2. Rio Vista Terrace saddle failures 
3. Toilet installation  
4. Review Capital Program  
 


ADJOURN 
 
The meeting adjourned at 9:42 p.m. 
 


Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 


Julie A. Kenny 


 3







 4


Clerk to the Board of Directors 
 
 
APPROVED:  
 
Victoria Wikle:  ______________ _ ______  
Gaylord Schaap: ______________ _ ______  
Sukey Robb-Wilder: ______________ _ ______  
Jim Quigley:  ______________ _ ______  
Richard Holmer        





		I. CALL TO ORDER

		II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATION OF CONFLICT (6:31 p.m.)

		III. CONSENT CALENDAR (6:34 p.m.)

		IV. PUBLIC COMMENT (6:35 p.m.)

		V. ADMINISTRATIVE (6:37 p.m.)

		VI. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT (7:46 p.m.)

		VII. BOARD MEMBERS’ ANNOUNCEMENTS/COMMENTS 

		(8:47 p.m.)

		VIII. CLOSED SESSION (8:48 p.m.)

		A. (This item was removed from discussion earlier in the meeting.)

		C. Conference with Legal Counsel – Existing Litigation, pursuant to subd. (a) of Section 54956.9.

		 Name of case: John Bruce Berry, et al. v. F. Korbel & Bros. et al.

		B. Conference with Real Property Negotiators pursuant to Gov. Code Section 94956.7

		 Property at 14335 Woods Ave., Guerneville

		 Agency negotiator: Steve Mack

		 Negotiating parties: SSWD and to be determined 





		IX. ITEMS FOR THE NEXT AGENDA (9:40 p.m.)

		ADJOURN






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 
 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. III-D 
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


Meeting Date: December 1, 2011  
 
SUBJECT:  RESOLUTION 11-29, APPROVING RESTATED 457 PLAN WITH 
VALIC  
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Adopt Resolution 11-29 which approves the restated 
Plan document.   
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  None.  The District’s 457 Plans are funded 100% through 
employee-elected contributions. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
The District offers employees the opportunity to supplement their retirement 
by contributing tax-deferred dollars to a 457(b) plan.  We have 457 Plan 
Agreements with VALIC and PERS.  Both Plans are funded 100% through 
employee-elected contributions, made via payroll deduction. 
 
Resolution 11-29 updates the VALIC Plan Agreement to bring it into 
compliance with recent federal tax legislation.*  Attached is correspondence 
from VALIC discussing the changes required under the new laws.  Most of 
these changes do not apply to our employees.  However, there is one 
significant change:  the new Plan offers an option for employees to designate 
some or all their contributions to the Plan to be treated as after-tax Roth 
contributions.   
 
The new Plan, like the old Plan, has several provisions with various 
alternatives for employers to select.  (See, pp. 2-5 of the Plan.)  The new 
Roth option is one such provision.  As in previous years, staff has selected 
options for the Plan that offer employees the most flexibility in using their 
Plan dollars.     
 
 
 
* We haven’t received a similar request from PERS to update our Plan agreement 
with them. 
 
 
 
 
 







 
Resolution No. 11-29 


 
A RESOLUTION OF THE SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 


BOARD OF DIRECTORS AUTHORIZING ADOPTION OF PLAN 
RESTATEMENT (VALIC 457 PLAN)  


 
 WHEREAS, Sweetwater Springs Water District, (hereinafter, the “Employer”) 
established the Sweetwater Springs Water District Deferred Compensation Plan 
(hereinafter, the “Plan”), effective May 7, 1997 and amended from time to time 
thereafter, for the exclusive benefit of its employees and their beneficiaries. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Employer hereby amends and 
restates the Plan in the form of the Plan attached hereto; and, 
 
 RESOLVED, FURTHER, that the appropriate officers of the Employer, or their 
delegates, are hereby authorized to execute the amendment and restatement of the 
Plan effective January 1, 2012. 
 
 
 I hereby certify that the above and foregoing was adopted by the Board of 
Directors of the SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT, Sonoma County, 
California, at a meeting held on December 1, 2011, by the following vote: 
 
 


Director    Aye  No  
 
Sukey Robb-Wilder       
Jim Quigley        
Gaylord Schaap       
Richard Holmer       
Victoria Wikle        


 
 


           
      Jim Quigley 
      President of the Board of Directors 
      
Attest: Julie A. Kenny  
Clerk of the Board of Directors 
 





		Item III-D - 457 Plan Adoption - updated

		Meeting Date: December 1, 2011 



		Item III-D.1 Res 11-29 Adoption of VALIC 457 Plan Restatement






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 
 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-A  
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


Meeting Date: December 1, 2011  
 
SUBJECT:  DISCUSSION/ACTION RE RIO VISTA TERRACE SADDLE 
FAILURES  
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Receive a report on progress resolving the Rio Vista 
Terrace service connection saddle failures.  


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  none.   
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
Since the last meeting another service saddle failed on November 7; this was the 4th failure.  
The Board was copied with the letter sent on November 8 to the contractor, W.R. Forde, 
demanding repair of all saddles.  W.R. Forde has responded suggesting different alternatives 
for repairing the saddles and requested a meeting at the District Office to discuss this matter.  
That meeting is scheduled for December 1 at 10 am.  At the Board meeting I will be prepared 
to discuss the meeting, any agreements reached on how to move forward, and any other 
issues associated with the situation.   
 





		Meeting Date: December 1, 2011 






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 
 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-B  
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


Meeting Date: December 1, 2011  
 
SUBJECT:  DISCUSSION/ACTION RE TOILET DIRECT INSTALL PROGRAM 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Receive an update on doing a District-financed toilet 
direct install program for areas not served by the Russian River County 
Sanitation District in conjunction with the Sonoma County Water Agency 
(SCWA). 


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  unknown, but covered by grant from SCWA.   
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
At the November Board meeting, I informed the Board on my initial contact with 
SCWA staff regarding the possibility of doing a toilet direct install program.  They 
were enthusiastic and suggested having a meeting on November 10 to talk 
about how to do this.  We held the meeting and agreed the best approach was 
to have the District piggy-back onto SCWA’s existing program – have everything 
go through SCWA and have the District reimburse SCWA.       
 
One of the issues that was brought up at the last meeting was getting local 
plumbers more involved.  SCWA staff is open to adding plumbers and has tried 
to include local plumbers; they just need to apply to get on their list.  Issues 
that may reduce plumber interest include: 
 


• Fee for the plumber may be considered too low.  SCWA has set the price 
based on a county-wide average and some plumbers may want to be paid 
at a higher rate.   


• Insurance requirements.  Anyone working on residential plumbing 
representing a governmental agency is going to need adequate insurance.   
Every responsible plumber will have insurance, but it may not meet the 
SCWA standard.  A plumber may not want to increase his/her insurance 
costs for the amount of work this program may bring them.     


 
SCWA staff are consulting with their legal staff regarding the need for an 
agreement on this and any other issues.  We anticipate a February or March 
start.   





		Meeting Date: December 1, 2011 






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-C 
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 


 
Meeting Date: December 1, 2011 
  
SUBJECT: DISCUSSION/ACTION RE REPLACEMENT/UPGRADES OF 
DISTRICT RADIOS 
 


 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Receive a presentation from the General Manager on the 
need to upgrade or replace District radios and resolve nonpayment issues with Crystal 
Communications. 


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  None at this time 
    
DISCUSSION: 
 
District staff in the field communicate with each other and the office using radios using 
a District frequency.  Currently that frequency has a bandwidth of 25 KHz.  The District 
has to switch to radio operations using a band width of 12.5 KHz by January 2013.  This 
switch is called narrow banding and is required of all similar radio use in the United 
States. The District has 15 radios – 8 in vehicles and 7 hand held.  Some of these radios 
may be capable of switching to the narrower frequency band, but most will not.   
 
The District’s radio service is supplied off a repeater located at the Mount Jackson 
summit on District property leased to Crystal Communications (Crystal).  The terms of 
Crystal’s lease, in general, require that Crystal maintain the repeater at the Mount 
Jackson site at no cost to the District and pay $1200 per month rent.  Despite periodic 
requests for payment from the District, Crystal has not paid any rent for over one year 
and is currently in arrears of approximately $30,000.  They have maintained the radio 
repeater in good condition and respond when there are repeater operational issues.  
Until recently the District has not pushed the lack of rental payment issue because of 
the necessity of radio service for District operations.   
 
We have one year to comply with the Federal Communications Commission (FCC) 
directive to switch to narrow band operations.  Staff investigations into this and the 
Mount Jackson site have identified several issues: 
 


• There will be considerable costs associated with this – we are thinking in the 
$20,000-25,000 range.  Replacement of existing radios is approximately $600-
800 per radio.  The repeater equipment on Mount Jackson will also need to be 
replaced.  The District may want to consider switching to digital operations which 
will add approximately $100-$200 per radio and unknown, if any, costs to the 
repeater replacement.   We have been told that digital radio service will work 
better in our area with the narrower bandwidth.   


 







Replacement/Upgrades of District Radios  2  
December 1, 2011 
 


• Crystal needs to comply with the lease or end our relationship.  The lease calls 
for a 180 day termination notice.  There is no provision for termination due to 
non-payment.    The lease has approximately 2 more years to run.   The Mount 
Jackson site has value and there would be replacement candidates to use the site 
for radio service.   As I write this report I have no clear idea about Crystal’s 
interest in continuing with the relationship.   


 
• Repeater operations have a cost.  The local fire districts pay approximately 


$8,000 per year for their service.   
 


• None of the expenses associated with narrow banding is in the FY 2012 Budget.    
 
Staff is currently in communication with Crystal regarding their interest in continuing 
the lease and making the required payments.  We need to get resolved their short-term 
and long-term interest in having a relationship with the District.  If we can’t come to a 
satisfactory conclusion, we will be reporting back to the Board regarding our options.   
 
Once that is resolved, staff will be moving forward on complying with the narrow band 
requirement.  If we can develop a positive relationship with Crystal, I am hoping they 
will help us through this process.  If not, we will be working with others.  The Board will 
be informed of our progress on this issue.   
 








SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 
 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-D 
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


Meeting Date: December 2, 2010  
 
Subject:  2012-2018 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM REVIEW   
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Receive a report on the 2012-2018 Capital 
Improvement Program Review.  


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  none 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
Capital improvements are an important element of the District’s work effort.  
The District has an aging infrastructure, an unacceptable amount of unaccounted 
for water and District staff spend too much time reacting to leaks in the 
distribution system.  A Capital Improvement Program (CIP) identifies the 
projects needed to upgrade a utility’s infrastructure and includes a process of 
reviewing District capital project needs.   In December 2010 District staff started 
the prior review of the District’s capital needs which resulted in the 2012-2018 
CIP approved in January 2011 (Table 1).  In the past year the District has nearly 
completed the FY 2012 CIP, the first year of this CIP. Currently, the District has 
engaged Coastland Engineering to design the FY 2013 CIP, with construction 
expected to start in June 2012.  Funding for these projects has been assisted 
with grants from the Sonoma County Redevelopment Agency (CRDA) and the 
Russian River Redevelopment Oversight Committee (RRROC).  A year has 
passed since approval of the current CIP and it’s appropriate to review the 
approved CIP.  
 
Since the approval of the 2012-2018 CIP last January, the funding plan for the 
CIP has changed.   A year ago, the District was planning on fully funding the 
2012 CIP by ourselves and then requesting funding for the 2013 and 2014 CIP’s.  
The State attempt to abolish redevelopment statewide moved up the District’s 
plan.  The District requested 75% funding from the RRROC and CRDA for the 
elements of the 2012 and 2013 CIP’s  that are eligible for CRDA funding and that 
funding was approved.   Additional funding for the CIP is uncertain because 
future redevelopment programs in general remain uncertain.   
 
The staff review of Table 1 has resulted in small changes in the project 
descriptions.  In particular, the FY 2013 CIP has been updated with recent 
information developed for the design effort.   







2012-2018 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM REVIEW 2  
December 1, 2011 


 


 
This list of projects is a wish list.  The current rate structure does not support 
funding at this level without grant assistance (or loans which we are not 
planning to seek).   Table 2 which is the multi-year projection of available 
funding for capital projects, shows that the District goes below Policy Reserve 
levels by FY 2018 without funding assistance of approximately $1 million for 
the entire 2012-2018 CIP.    
 
Table 2 shows a brighter picture than was presented one year ago.  I 
discovered an error in my calculation approach (I combined budgeted 
amounts with actual) that double counted the beginning year CIP expense.  
Even with the brighter picture, if funding assistance does not materialize we 
will have to scale back or extend out our program. 
 
This is a seven year CIP, but the most important part to review now is the 
next two years’ – FY 2013-2014 – projects.   We annually review our CIP and 
the next full review will happen in November – December 2012.  By that time 
the FY 2012 and FY 2013 will have been completed or under contract for 
completion, and the FY 2014 project will likely be in design.  In the next full 
CIP review we will be re-evaluating the projects from FY 2015 on and 
considering extending the CIP out for two more years – to 2020.   
 
The 2012-2018 CIP is focused on distribution system improvements.   There 
are other possible capital improvements out there including: 
 


• Chlorination system at both treatment locations.  The current system, 
Miox, is maintenance intensive and has continually failing elements.  
Staff is investigating alternatives that will have longer lived 
components and require less maintenance.  Expected cost is 
approximately $25,000 for two units.   


 
• Green sand Filter replacement at Monte Rio Treatment Plant.  This was 


an emergency rehabilitation two years ago and has an expected life of 
approximately 8 years.  We may want to replace the green sand filter 
with the system used at the Highland site (Atech) which has been low 
maintenance and longer lived between rehabilitations, and has the 
additional benefit of not needing the addition of potassium 
permanganate which is a hazardous material, and which over 
application can cause the treated water to turn pink.  Expected cost is 
approximately $100,000.   


 
At this time staff do not want to add these projects to the CIP.   







2012-2018 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM REVIEW 3  
December 1, 2011 


 


 
 
 


Table 1.  Sweetwater Springs Water District 2012-2018 CIP  
Projects by Year 


Year Projects 
Estimated 


Cost 
2012    


  
Western, Eastern and Northern Avenues and Orchard Lane (GV) -  
Replace 3,100 lf of existing main and appurtenances. $684,000 


  


Foothill Drive (MR) – Install 1,000 lf of new 8 – inch main and 
appurtenances from B Street northwesterly to end of existing 8 – inch 
main and make connection to other side of Foothill where section of road 
is closed to through traffic.   $671,000 


  2012 Total $1,355,000 
2013    


  
Starrett Hill Road (MR) Replace approximately 1940 ft of main line, 25 
services. $380,000 


  
Lovers Lane (GV) Replace approximately 1440 ft of main line, 22 
services. $300,000 


  
Middle Terrace (MR) Replace approximately 1,270 ft of main line, 13 
services. $290,000 


  


Canyon Seven Rd (GV) – Eliminate dead end mains and create loops by 
installing 2,505 lf of new main and appurtenances in Canyon Seven Rd 
between Sequoia Rd and Paradise Ln with extension up Rio Nido Road, 
31 services.   $329,000 


  2013 Total $1,299,000 
2014    


  
Hidden Valley Rd (GV) – Replace 3,900 lf of existing main and 
appurtenances on Hidden Valley Rd. $656,000 


  


Old Monte Rio Road (GV) – Replace 5,800 lf of existing main and 
appurtenances commencing at the Handy Andy Booster and proceeding 
westerly. 


$936,000 


  2014 Total $1,592,000 
2015    


  
Park Ave. (GV) replace approximately 2900 lf of main line on Park Ave. 
and McLane Ave., 37 services.  Loop two deadend lines. $688,000 


  Cherry St. (GV) replace approximately 440 lf of main line, 13 services.   $126,000 


  


Guernewood Lane (GV) - – Replace 1,800 lf of existing main and 
appurtenances and abandon 200 lf of redundant 4 – inch main along Hwy 
116. $318,000 


  2015 Total $1,132,000 
2016    


  
Canyon 1 (Rio Nido)  Replace approximately 3,900 ft of existing mainline 
and 75 services along Canyon 1 Rd., Memory Ln., Memory Park Rd. $890,000 


  


Wright Drive main pressure zone. – (GV) Replace approximately 1,120 ft 
of existing mainline and 18 associated services along Wright Dr. and 
Wright Ln.   $275,000 


  2016 Total $1,165,000 







2012-2018 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM REVIEW 4  
December 1, 2011 


 


2017    


  


Schoeneman pressure zone- main line replacement. (GV)    Replace 
approximately 3,000 ft of existing mainline and 47 associated services 
along Highland Way, Sunset Ave, Woodland Dr, Laurel Way and 
Morningside Drive. (requires completion of Schoeneman Tank) $744,300 


  


Woodland Drive – mainline replacement. (GV) Replace approximately 
1,900 ft of existing mainline and 27 associated services along Woodland 
Dr in the main pressure zone.   $400,000 


  2017 Total $1,144,300 
2018    
  Highway 116 (MR) Replace approximately 850 ft of main line.  $280,000 
  Main St   (MR) Replace approximately 800 ft of mainline along Main St. $180,000 


  


Upper Summit Tank - Construct a storage tank with a nominal capacity of 
approximately 120,000 gallons at the District–owned site on McLane 
Avenue. Project to include relocation/ construction of the existing hydro-
pneumatic pump station. $490,000 


  
Natoma Tank – Replace the existing 10,000 gallon storage tank with a 
30,000 storage tank.   2005 cost estimate 


$190,000 


  
Schoeneman Tank– Replace the existing 10,000 gallon tank with a 
30,000 gallon storage tank.  2005 cost estimate 


$127,000 


  2018 Total $1,267,000 
  Total 2012-2018 CIP $8,954,300 
     


  Other Possible Future Projects through FY2020   
Approximate 


Cost  


  


Wright Drive upper pressure zone. – (GV)    Replace approximately 3,280 
ft of existing mainline and 47 associated services along Wright Dr, Glenda 
Dr, Natoma Dr. (requires completion of Natoma Tank) $800,000 


  Total Approximate Cost of Future, Unapproved Projects $800,000 







December 1, 2011 Y FY 12 FY 13 FY 14 FY 15 FY 16 FY 17 FY 18
REVENUE/SOURCES OF FUNDS


Net Operating Revenues* 300,585 306,223 360,667 363,838 417,995 423,172 479,395
Total Assessments 777,000 777,000 777,000 777,000 777,000 777,000 777,000
Capital Debt Reduction Charge** 227,000           283,750            354,688          404,300          404,300        404,300         404,300         
Capital Interest 89,240             75,209              10,000            10,000            10,000          10,000           10,000           
CDC Grants 503,250           974,250            
Private Placement Funding (Loan proceeds)
Transfers From CIRF/Reserves 600,000           25,000              1,240,000       720,000          700,000        680,000         116,665         


TOTAL REVENUE 2,497,075 2,441,431 2,742,355 2,275,138 2,309,295 2,294,472 1,787,360


Total Debt Payments 1,091,314        1,091,314         1,091,314       1,091,314       1,091,314     1,091,314      1,091,314      
CIP III


C FY 12 CIP FY 13 CIP FY 14 CIP FY 15 CIP FY 16 CIP FY 17 CIP FY 18 CIP
Annual CIP 1,355,000 1,299,000 1,592,000 1,132,000 1,165,000 1,144,300 1,267,000
In-House Construction Projects 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000


TOTAL EXPENSES 2,486,314 2,430,314 2,723,314 2,263,314 2,296,314 2,275,614 2,398,314


SURPLUS/DEFICIT 10,761 11,117 19,041            11,824            12,981          18,858           (610,954)        


FUND AND LOAN BALANCES (EOY)
Funds above District Reserve Policy 3,407,844        3,393,961         2,173,002       1,464,825       777,806        116,665         (610,954)        
Begining PP Loan
EOY PP LOAN
Total Funding Available for CIP 3,407,844        3,393,961         2,173,002       1,464,825       777,806        116,665         (610,954)        
* Projection includes estimated effect of annual 3% COLA rate increase for Base Charge and Water Use Charge 
** Projection includes CDRC rate increases in FY13, FY14, and FY15 to pay principal and interest on Private Placement Loan


EXPENSES


Table 2.  Sweetwater Springs Water District Capital Planning Budget, 2012-2018, RRROC Funding FY 12, FY13


 





		Meeting Date: December 2, 2010 






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 
 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-E 
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


Meeting Date: December 1, 2011  
 
SUBJECT:  2012 ORGANIZATION MEETING / BOARD ELECTIONS   
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Elect Board officers for the coming year.   
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  none 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
District policy requires the election of officers for the coming year at the 
December Board meeting.  District policy states: "5000.50 Annual 
Organizational Meeting: The Board of Directors …. shall hold an annual 
organizational meeting at its regular meeting in December. At this meeting 
the Board will elect a President, Vice President and Financial Coordinator from 
among its members to serve during the coming calendar year." 
 
 
 
 





		Meeting Date: December 1, 2011 






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. VI   
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


Meeting Date: December 1, 2011  
 
Subject:  GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT   
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Receive report from the General Manager. 


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  None 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 


1. Laboratory Testing: Water quality tests confirm that all SSWD water meets 
all known State and Federal water quality standards.   


 
2. Water Production and Sales:  Water sales in September were 32,091 


units (49.0 AF, Monte Rio cycle) and production was 61.2 AF.  Compared to 
one year ago, sales and production this October were less (55.5 AF and 71.6 
AF, respectively).    Figure 1 shows the 12 month moving average since 
September 2006, data are available back to May 2001.   


 
3. Leaks:  In October we had 10 total leaks and spent 50 man-hours on them.   


Those are smaller amounts in leaks and man-hours compared to the prior 
month and compared to October one year ago (24 leaks, 70 man-hours).  
Figure 2 is continued showing service and main leaks separately and I added 
a total breaks line as well.  It shows that the moving average has been 
dropping for all the past two months.       


 
4. The rainy season is here, Figure 3 is the cumulative annual Guerneville 


rainfall starting in October.  I estimated November rainfall in Guerneville for 
November as 4.58, adding 2 inches for the coming storms to the reported 
2.58 as of November 21.  This is below the long-term average but the 
rainfall year is just starting.     


 
5. 2012 CIP:  This project is done.  We wanted to have this project on the 


agenda for a Notice of Completion, but there were just too many loose ends.  
KAT was responsive to our efforts to move them along.  The actual work on 
the project was completed during the week of November 14th.  Both project 
areas look good.       


 







General Manager’s Report  2 of 4 
December 1, 2011 


6. Toilet Rebate Program:  There was 1 toilet rebate issued in November.  A 
total of 71 rebates have been approved.  Program discussed at Agenda Item 
V-B. 


 
7. In-House Construction Projects:  There were three in-house projects 


reported for November requiring 90.5 man-hours.  The largest project was 
the replacement of 400 feet of line from Canyon 3 to the Sweetwater 
Springs Tank.  The other projects were moving a meter on Wright Drive and 
the temporary fix of 4th saddle failure on Rio Vista Terrace which will be 
reimbursed by W.R. Forde Construction (discussed in Agenda item V-A).         


 
8. Sonoma County Water Agency (SCWA) Water Rights Permit Revision 


Protest.  Supervisor Carrillo and Grant Davis, General Manager of SCWA, 
and I held a meeting on this item on November 21.  We had a congenial 
meeting discussing many lower River issues.  I expressed my concern that 
SCWA would develop proposals for changing the rules of the River without 
stakeholder input until after the release of draft EIR on this item, when 
positions may have hardened.  Mr. Davis offered to have me talk to SCWA 
staff so I could learn more about what is being considered.  At the time of 
this report, these meetings have not been scheduled.     


 
9. Gantt Chart:   December in the Gantt Chart shows review of the District CIP 


– this item is on the agenda – and progress on the FY 2013 CIP design – 
contract for this was awarded last month.  The FY 2012 CIP is essentially 
completed and a Notice of Completion will be on the January agenda.            


 


Figure 1.  Water Production and Sales 12 Month Moving Averages
Sweetwater Springs Water District Since September 2006 


0


200


400


600


800


1,000


1,200


Sep-06 Mar-07 Sep-07 Mar-08 Sep-08 Mar-09 Sep-09 Mar-10 Sep-10 Mar-11 Sep-11


Sa
le


s 
an


d 
Pr


od
uc


tio
n 


(A
F)


5.0%


10.0%


15.0%


20.0%


25.0%


30.0%


35.0%


D
iff


er
en


ce
 (%


)


Sales
Production
%Difference


 
 


 







General Manager’s Report  3 of 4 
December 1, 2011 


 


Figure 2.  Sweetwater Springs Water District Main and Service Pipeline Breaks 
Moving Annual Average Since September 2006


-


50


100


150


200


250


300


350


400


Sep-
06


Dec-
06


Mar-
07


Jun-
07


Sep-
07


Dec-
07


Mar-
08


Jun-
08


Sep-
08


Dec-
08


Mar-
09


Jun-
09


Sep-
09


Dec-
09


Mar-
10


Jun-
10


Sep-
10


Dec-
10


Mar-
11


Jun-
11


Sep-
11


B
re


ak
s


Main Breaks
Service Breaks
Total Leaks


Figure 3.  Guerneville Cumulative Monthly Rainfall


0


10


20


30


40


50


60


70


Octo
be


r


Nov
em


be
r


Dec
em


be
r


Ja
nu


ary


Feb
rua


ry
Marc


h
Apri


l
May


Ju
ne Ju


ly


Aug
us


t


Sep
tem


be
r


Pr
ec


ip
ita


tio
n


 (i
n)


GV 2009
Guerneville Avg
GV 2011
2012


-







Jan-11 Feb-11 Mar-11 Apr-11 May-11 Jun-11 Jul-11 Aug-11 Sep-11 Oct-11 Nov-11 Dec-11 Jan-12 Feb-12 Mar-12 Apr-12 May-12 Jun-12 Jul-12 2012
Ongoing Activity
Board Action
Other Milestone
Current Month


Projected 
Completion/
Milestone 
Date


Crystal Communications Lease Completed
2011-12 Budget Preparation


•        Capital Improvement Program Board 
Discussion 


December-11


•        Staff Budget Preparation Begins
•        Ad Hoc Budget Committee Reviews Draft 
Budget
•        Draft Budget to Board for Discussion/Action April-11


•        Approve Budget May-11
2012-13 Budget Preparation


•        Capital Improvement Program Board 
Discussion 
•        Staff Budget Preparation Begins
•        Ad Hoc Budget Committee Reviews Draft 
Budget
•        Draft Budget to Board for Discussion/Action


•        Approve Budget
Capital Projects


•        CIP Phase IV-B, Project 1 Construction 
Starts


April-10


•        CIP Phase IV-B, Project 1 Construction 
Completed


October-10


•        CIP Phase IV-B, Project 2 Construction 
St t•        CIP Phase IV-B, Project 2 Construction 
Completed
•        2012 CIP Construction Award of Contract


•        2012 CIP Construction Starts


•        2012 CIP Construction Complete


•        Update/Review District CIP


•        2013 CIP Design


2010 Urban Water Management Plan July-11 Public Hearing
Water Rights SCWA Protest SCWA Response
Building Lease


•        Lease Ends July-11
Policies and Procedures


•        Other Policy
•        Overall Review


Board and General Manager Goals and Objectives


Table 1.  Sweetwater Springs WD Calendar Gantt Chart


By Activity
Action Item/Milestone


 





		Meeting Date: December 1, 2011 



